s,

Oy, Op
< Fo el
O haaTSTANDING NATUR e
'DDWCH NATURIO™

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are invited to attend a Meeting of the

GOWER AONB PARTNERSHIP GROUP

At: Penclawdd Community Centre, Penclawdd
On: Monday, 21 December 2015

Time: 7.00 pm

Chair: Councillor Paul Lloyd

Membership:

Councillors: M C Child, J P Curtice, J E C Harris, P R Hood-Williams, R D Lewis and
K E Marsh.

Representing Organisations: R Button, R Cooper, C Daugherty, J Davies,
S Heard (Vice Chair), S Hill, P R Hood-Williams, G Howe, H Morgan, D Vine,
A Woodman and R Wright.

AGENDA
Page No.
1 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.
http://www.swansea.gov.uk/Disclosuresofinterests
2 Minutes. 1-6
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous
meeting.
3  Matters Arising from the Minutes.
4 Designated Landscapes Review. 7-27
Presentation on the recommendations of the review — Chris Lindley.
5 Sustainable Development Fund. 28

Update on SDF grant scheme — Chris Lindley.

6 Presentation - Gower Landscape Partnership.
Presentation on Gower Landscape Partnership programme — Bryan
Harries.

7 Affordable Housing - Appointment of Sub-Group.
To appoint sub-group to facilitate development of position statement.


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/DisclosuresofInterests

8 Seascape Assessment. (Verbal)
Verbal update — Chris Lindley.

9 Gower AONB Partnership Annual Forum - 60th Anniversary
Celebrations. (For Discussion)

Next Meeting: Monday, 21 March 2016 at 7.00 pm

P e

Patrick Arran

Head of Legal and Democratic Services
11 December 2015

Contact: Democratic Services: - 01792 636923



Agenda Item 2

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA

MINUTES OF THE GOWER AONB PARTNERSHIP GROUP

HELD AT BARHAM CENTRE, MOUNT PISGAH CHAPEL, PARKMILL,
SWANSEA ON MONDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2015 AT 7.00 PM

PRESENT:  Councillor P Lloyd (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
M C Child J E C Harris K E Marsh
J P Curtice R D Lewis

Representing Organisations:

R Button - Tourism Swansea Bay

J Davies - Bay Trans

S Heard - Gower Riding Club/Port Eynon Community Council
Community Clir P R Hood-Williams - Upper Killay Community Council
G Howe - Gower Society

S Hill - Glamorgan-Gwent Archaeological Trust

H Morgan — Pennard Golf Club

H Osborn — Natural Resources Wales

Deborah Vine - Resident

R Wright - Natural Resources Wales

Officers:

K Flanders — Planning Policy and Environment Manager
C Lindley - Gower AONB Team Leader

M Scott - Gower AONB Officer

J Parkhouse - Democratic Services Officer

Also Present: -

P Rouge — Chair of Llanrhidian Lower Community Council
A Frank — Secretary, Gower Society

E Cowley — Dunraven Farm, Burry Green

M Cowley — Dunraven Farm, Burry Green

| Button — Rhossili Community Council

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR FOR THE 2015-2016 MUNICIPAL YEAR.

RESOLVED that S Heard be elected Vice Chair for the 2015-2016 Municipal Year.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

An apology for absence was received from R Cooper.

Page 1



17

18

19

20

Minutes of the Gower AONB Partnership Group (05.10.2015)
Cont'd

DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of
Swansea, the following interests were declared: -

Councillor P R Hood-Williams — Minute No.24 — Cwm lvy Embankment — Chairman
of Swansea Local Access Forum — personal.

Councillor K E Marsh - Minute No.24 — Cwm lvy Embankment — Member of
Swansea Local Access Forum — personal.

MINUTES.

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Gower AONB Partnership Annual Meeting held
on 29 June 2015 be approved as a correct record, subject to Minute No. 13 being
amended as follows: -

Two references to ‘a sign’ being changed to ‘an illuminated sign’.

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES.

Broadband on Gower

Roger Button commented that Vodaphone had upgraded their transmitter which had
improved connection near Rhossili. However, Steve Heard commented that the
connection was not consistent in other areas of Gower.

Illuminated Sign

Gordon Howe requested an update regarding the illuminated sign at Knelston.

The Planning Policy and Environment Manager stated that she would provide a
response and circulate it to the Steering Group.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT PANEL.

RESOLVED that the following be elected to the Sustainable Development Fund
Grant Panel:

Councillor P Lloyd (Chair)
Councillor M C Child

E Harris

Councillor J E C Harris

G Howe

Councillor K E Marsh

D Vine

A Woodman

Page 2



21

22

23

24

Minutes of the Gower AONB Partnership Group (05.10.2015)
Cont'd

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FUND GRANT APPEALS PANEL.

RESOLVED that the following be elected to the Sustainable Development Fund
Grant Appeals Panel:

S Heard (Chair)

G Ap Gwent

R Button

Councillor J P Curtice
C Daugherty

J Davies

S Hill

H Morgan

DESIGNATED LANDSCAPES REVIEW.

The Gower AONB Team Leader updated the meeting regarding the Designated
Landscapes Review. He stated that the review report had not been released and an
announcement by the Welsh Government was expected before the end of October
2015. He added that this was a fundamental review of National Park’s and AONB’s
in Wales.

An update will be provided at the next meeting.

GOWER AONB BOUNDARY QUERY.

The Gower AONB Team Leader reported an issue that had been raised by a
member of the public regarding the legal boundary to the AONB, specifically in
Mumbles, around the foreshore and pier. He added that the legal boundary was the
one confirmed by the Minister in December 1956. However, it was added that part of
the issue was the scale of the original mapping and its transposition onto modern
base mapping and GIS systems.

The Planning Policy and Environment Manager added that the issue had been
raised because the boundary was vague in some places. However, Council and
NRW officers had agreed the boundary that was used in the Swansea Unitary
Development Plan.

AGREED that: -

1) The contents of the update be noted;

2) The Gower AONB boundary map agreed in 1956 be circulated to the Steering
Group.

CWM IVY EMBANKMENT.

The update regarding Cwm Ivy Habitat Creation Project — Coastal Embankment
Access produced Natural Resources Wales and the National Trust was provided for
information.

Page 3



25

26

27

28

Minutes of the Gower AONB Partnership Group (05.10.2015)
Cont'd

MINUTES OF THE GOWER LANDSCAPE PARTNERSHIP STEERING GROUP

MEETING - 15TH JULY 2015.

The Minutes of the Gower Landscape Partnership Steering Group meeting held on
15t July 2015 were provided for information.

PART-TIME TRAFFIC LIGHTS AT PARKMILL - FOR DISCUSSION.

John Davies, Bay Trans raised the issue of having part-time traffic lights at Parkmill
due to traffic problems. He stated that every Summer that were traffic delays at
Parkmill, mainly due to buses / large vehicles. The hotpots were the Kilvrough
bends and in Parkmill. He added that temporary road lights were installed last
Summer for road works and matters improved somewhat. However, serious delays
lasting over an hour had directly affected bus services.

The Gower AONB Officer stated that he had contacted Transportation regarding the
issue and was awaiting a response.

Discussions followed regarding the issue and centred around: -

¢ Insufficient time to allow traffic to travel from Kilvrough to Parkmill if lights were in

operation;

Possibly introducing a one way system;

The introduction on speed indicators to slow traffic;

Traffic lights would urbanise the area;

The possibility of widening the road at Kilvrough and the implications of such

actions;

Introducing traffic lights could cause serious delays and affect tourism;

e Buses, caravans and lorries had become larger which meant that they could not
pass each other at places such as Kilvrough bends.

RENEWABLE ENERGY POSITION STATEMENT.GOWER AONB -
ALTERNATIVE ENERGY SUB GROUP - PROGRESS.

The Gower AONB Team Leader provided a ‘for information’ progress update
regarding the Gower AONB, Alternative Energy Sub Group.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING ON GOWER - A POSITION STATEMENT BY THE
GOWER AONB PARTNERSHIP.

The Gower AONB Officer presented a report which provided a Position Statement by
the Gower AONB Partnership on Affordable Housing on Gower. He detailed the
information contained within the report and stated that following the meeting, he
would submit the Statement to the Planning Policy Team to consider as part of the
Local Development Plan (LDP).

Page 4



29

Minutes of the Gower AONB Partnership Group (05.10.2015)
Cont'd

Discussions followed regarding the following: -

e The issue of second homes on Gower not paying Council Tax;

e Section 106 agreements;

Enforcement issues, particularly relating to lack of resources at City and County
of Swansea,;

Single development sites on Gower;

Huge shortage of affordable homes on Gower;

LDP proposals will alter some villages on Gower by introducing new homes;
Building single occupancy homes in addition to family homes on Gower.

AGREED that: -

1) The content of the report and the comments of the Steering Group be noted;

2) The word ‘overwhelmingly’ be deleted from the report;

3) The recommendations contained in the report be forwarded to the Planning
Policy Team as follows: -

e The City & County of Swansea and Registered Social Landlords should ensure
that planning and housing policies affecting Gower sufficiently acknowledge the
pressing need for affordable housing on Gower, so as to support sustainable
local rural communities on Gower, and to protect the character and special
qualities of Gower AONB.

e All new housing developments on Gower should be overwhelmingly affordable,
with a balance of affordable housing for sale and rent.

e The use of “staircasing” or “shared ownership” schemes should be encouraged
where this may enable occupiers to move to “market housing” at a later date.
However, it is important that secure arrangements are in place to retain these
properties as affordable housing for subsequent occupiers.

e The conversion of redundant farm buildings to residential accommodation should
be permitted where appropriate, with secure arrangements in place to retain it as
affordable or agricultural housing in the future.

e The use of Section 106 mechanisms to provide affordable or agricultural housing
should continue, but with robust and secure arrangements in place to retain
properties as affordable housing for subsequent occupiers.

SEASCAPE ASSESSMENT.

The Gower AONB Officer updated the meeting regarding possible funding being
provided by Natural Resources Wales (NRW) in respect of a seascape character
assessment.

He added that the assessment would cover the coastline between Pembrokeshire
and the Glamorgan Heritage coast. The Authority was looking into the possibility of
working in partnership with Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council and
Carmarthenshire Council to commission the study. Funding from other sources may
also be sought.

Page 5



30

31

Minutes of the Gower AONB Partnership Group (05.10.2015)
Cont'd

The meeting asked a number of questions of the Officer who responded accordingly.
Discussions centred around the following: -

e Funding for Sea wall at Cwm Ivy, including the responsibilities of NRW AND the
City and County of Swansea;

Previous studies that had been undertaken;

Partnership working with other local authorities;

Funding and scope of the project;

Utilising the results of the study and how it would assist the AONB.

AGREED that the contents of the report be noted.

60TH ANNIVERSARY FOR GOWER AONB - FOR DISCUSSION.

The Gower AONB Team Leader informed the Steering Group that Gower AONB was
celebrating its 60" anniversary in 2016 and he asked the meeting for ideas regarding
how best to celebrate the achievement.

The following was discussed: -

Improving signage on motorways and on approaches to Swansea;
Improving signage in general;

Marketing the anniversary across all communities on Gower;

Placing more emphasis upon Gower, highlighting the product available and
making things accessible;

Utilising all companies that have Gower in their title;

e Organise events involving both local people and visitors.

The Chair requested that individuals contact the officers with suggestions.

DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS: -

NOTED the dates / times of future meetings as follows: -

e 7 p.m.on Monday, 21 December 2015 — Penclawdd Community Centre.
e 7 p.m.on Monday, 21 March 2016 — Venue To Be Confirmed.

The meeting ended at 8.30 pm

CHAIR

Page 6



Agenda ltem 4

National
Landscapes:
Realising their
Potential

The Review of
Designated Landscapes
in Wales

Final Report

Professor Terry Marsden
John Lloyd-Jones
Dr Ruth Williams

31 July 2015
Page 7



Executive Summary and
Recommendations

The Review of Designated Landscapes in Wales was commissioned by the Minister for
Natural Resources, Carl Sargeant AM in 2014 to “ensure that our designated landscapes are
best equipped to meet current and future challenges while building upon their internationally

recognised status”.

He also wanted us to consider the governance and management arrangements of Wales’ eight
designated landscapes; how any future governing body/bodies would best promote
collaboration and joint working while avoiding duplication and how any future governing body
would best reinforce local accountability and decision making. We were also asked to
consider the future role of National Park Authorities as planning authorities and to consider the

promotion of diversity on the boards of bodies managing these areas.

Over the past year we have taken a wide range of evidence, locally, nationally and
internationally, upon which to basis our findings and recommendations these are set out in

greater detail in the following Chapters.
Figure i: Governance from principles to delivery

This report presents a set of recommendations

that meet the requirements set by the Minister e

and are interconnected (see Figure i). We have 1

produced a suite of guiding Principles which l "
have, in turn, informed the changes we have Purposss

made to the Purposes of designated .3
landscapes in Wales. We then set out a new 4

Vision for the National Landscapes, which vision )
represent 25% of the land area of Wales, and Natiunaii‘;:dscapeﬁ ]

finally set out our recommended Governance
Y

Framework for delivery.

The National Governance
Framework

Our perspective of our designated landscapes

has changed, they remain, in some sense the

passive ‘green lungs’ for the urban populations,

; Delivery
but they also have the potential to become

T T T T

Page 8



dynamic and productive ‘factories of well-being’. Our recommendations help our designated
landscapes realise that potential and we look forward to the support of the Welsh Government

to allow this ¥ of Wales deliver for the Nation as a whole.

The Principles

Recommendation 1

Our guiding principles are:

o We need to examine the refreshed purposes within a medium to long term time
frame, so as to give equivalent continuity in the future to that achieved over the
past sixty years.

o It is important, however, not to be too reliant on the past in formulating a new

; and refreshed vision for the designated landscapes which recognises the
significant challenges they face in the future.

° To align the purposes such that they recognise that both designations have
over some considerable time been operating de-facto and to varying degrees
beyond their original remits.

o That any changes in purposes and accompanying duties should be lasting, clear
and likely to ensure and embody the precedence placed under ‘the Sandford
Principle’, giving priority to the first purpose. It also became clear that if there
were to be an increase in the actual number of purposes then the others would
(a) need to give priority to the first if there were clear conflicts; and, as
importantly, (b) the rest would be mutually reinforcing and binding on delivering
the first. This “Sandford Plus” approach needs to link and integrate any
additional purposes.

o There was also a strong argument for revisiting the statutory duties on related
bodies, to clarify and strengthen them. This should ensure that the designated
landscape bodies themselves and the relevant national and local organisations
— including utility companies and the Welsh Government comply with both the
purposes and duty.

° To realise the importance of international obligations; lessons and the

opportunities they provide for Wales.

Page 9



o To ensure the purposes can continue to meet and encourage their relevant
bodies to maintain, and exceed, international obligations and standards of
nature conservation and landscape protection e.g. IUCN categories and the
European Landscape Convention.

o To strive for purposes which are both enduring and have the ability to be
applied to other candidate areas, including marine areas, at some future date.

e Any recommended changes made to the direction and/or wording of the
purposes should be made in the context of them being: (a) clear, precise,
unambiguous and consistent; (b) able to be clearly understood and convey
clarity of direction; and (c) legally and technically robust.

° Any changes recommended should strike a judicious balance between
providing overall consistency of purpose, and encouraging and celebrating the
natural and cultural diversity of the family of protected landscapes themselves.

o To remain mindful of the strength and value of the National Parks and AONBs,
and not to undermine their benefits across Wales.

° Avoid compromising these places through any unnecessary additional burden
on the public purse; and enhance the efficiency of public funding where
possible. :

o To interpret the purposes and duties in ways that deliver across the whole
Welsh Government policy agenda.

The Welsh Government should adopt these guiding principles.

Recommendation 2

There should not be a single designation.

Page 10



The Purposes

Recommendation 3

There is ONE set of statutory purposes and an associated single statutory duty for both

designations.

Recommendation 4

The Welsh Government should retain the names of “National Parks” and “Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty” (AONBs) as the key designations of the “National

Landscapes of Wales”.

Recommendation 5

The Welsh Government should establish a consistent and resilient nomenclature, such

that both designations collectively become:
“The National Landscapes of Wales”

“National Park” and “Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty” which are “The Equivalent

Designations™

The Equivalent Designations would possess identical statutory purposes and duties

Recommendation 6

There should be THREE INTERLOCKING statutory purposes for both the National Parks
and AONBs.

These are:

10

Page 11



“To conserve and enhance the distinctive landscape and seascape qualities of the

area'.”

(the Conservation Purpose)

“To promote physical and mental well-being through the enjoyment and understanding

of the landscape of the area.”
(the Human Well-being Purpose)

“To promote sustainable forms of economic and community development based on the

management of natural resources and the cultural heritage of the area.”
(the Sustainable Resource Management Purpose)

Recommendation 7

The Sandford Principle, confirmirig the primacy of the conservation purpose, will be

applied across all the designated landscapes.

Recommendation 8

There should be a new single Statutory Duty that removes the weak “have regard to”
prefixes in the current duties on relevant public bodies, and replaces them with a

single and clear duty:

“To contribute to the delivery of the three purposes of the National Landscapes.”

4
i

Where ‘landscape’ incorporates the total natural environment of the area, together with its biodiversity, human
settlements and cultural aspects. It is particularly important to stress the significance of progressing bio-diversity protection and
restoration in the Conservation Purpose and to promote progress towards international standards relating to the International
Biodiversity Convention so far unattained in Wales. This also incorporates the European Landscape Convention (Council of Europe,
2000) definition as * an area, as perceived by people, whose character is the result of the action and interaction of natural and/or
human factors’ (Article 1a.). And it assumes the enhancement of ‘actions to conserve and maintain the significant or characteristic
features of a landscape, justified by its heritage value derived from its natural configuration and/or from human activity’ (Article 1d.).
11

Page 12



The Vision

The vision needs to preside and give direction to the dynamic and multi-level governance for

these special places. The National Landscapes can then be positioned as leading and

innovative places for capturing and integrating the environmental economy, and the well-being

and sustainability goals, and installing them as regional hubs for sustainable rural development

and the providers of ecosystem services.

Recommendation 9

A Vision for the National Landscapes of Wales

The National Landscapes of Wales are valued by the nation as important “factories of
well-being”, improving the lives of current and future generations through their three
purposes. Their special qualities are maintained, enhanced and widely appreciated.
They are areas for innovative, place-based collaborations that address the economic,
social and environmental challenges facing Wales, and are recognised internationally

as leaders in the delivery of sustainable development.

Recommendation 10

As the 'factories of well-being' which we envision, the National Landscapes of Wales
should develop and stimulate more local enterprise partnerships, sustainable

affordable housing, green energy and retailing ventures.

Recommendation 11

Building on the community development initiatives in National Landscapes will require
continuity of seed-corn funding for integrated projects which contribute to their three

integrated shared purposes.

Page 13

12



Recommendation 12

Welsh Government should empower the National Landscapes of Wales to become
official centres for innovation and catalysts for regional development in rural Wales,

within their environmental limits.

Recommendation 13

The Welsh Government should ensure that the National Landscapes of Wales can and
do contribute to the Welsh Government's ‘Partnership for Growth: Strategy for Tourism
2013-2020" - both collectively, and individually.

Recommendation 14

The Welsh Government should ensure that the National Landscapes are involved in all
infrastructure planning and development in Wales such as the National Infrastructure

Investment Plan, the Green Growth Strategy and the National Planning Framework.

Recommendation 15

The National Landscapes need to better understand their local and regional economies,

and especially their tourism economies.

Recommendation 16

The Welsh Government should empower the National Landscapes to deliver its ‘Green
Growth' agenda, founded on a marriage of exceptional landscapes and sustainable

development.

13

Page 14



Recommendation 17

The Welsh Government should champion the National Landscapes as international
flagships for Wales in the fields of sustainable development, health and tourism in
particular.

Recommendation 18

The National Landscapes of Wales upgrade their health and well-being policies to align
with the new second purpose. This can be linked to wider, deeper access and

sustainable tourism dimensions.

Recommendation 19

The National Landscapes of Wales undertake more health and well-being related
experiments in developing and reaching challenged urban and rural communities and

sections of the population. These could be delivered jointly with local health boards.

Recommendation 20

The Welsh Government and Natural Resources Wales should extend the coastal
National Landscapes to cover adjacent sea areas and take an integrated approach to

coastal resource management in these areas.

Recommendation 21

The National Landscape managers should ensure that coastal users are at the centre of

their coastal management planning processes.

14

Page 15



Recommendation 22

The successful Pembrokeshire Coastal Forum model should be applied more widely

across the coastal areas of the National Landscapes.

Recommendation 23

The National Landscapes of Wales should interpret and incorporate recommendations 9
to 22 above into pan-Wales indicators and targets for management planning purposes
and well-being reporting.

The Governance Framework

A New Framework for Wales’ National Landscapes

In order to 'realise the potential' of the National Landscapes of Wales, to address the barriers
and weaknesses and to attain an optimum fit between the reorganisation of purposes and
duties - we recommend a new framework of governance. The framework encompasses all
eight of the designated landscape management bodies and we hope they will all see its worth

and contribute to its success.

Recommendation 24

The Welsh Government should adopt the following new Framework of Governance for
the National Landscapes of Wales, as portrayed in Figures 16 (p.130) and 19 (p.164) and

described in detail in all our following Recommendations 25 to 69.

National Park Authorities and AONBs: A Model for Delivering National Priorities Locally
We believe that a modified statutory identity based upon the Single Purpose Authority model
for National Parks and the flexible multi-model governance approach for AONBs is the most
effective approach for fostering greater local and regional representation, management and

accountability. They are recognised internationally for effectively balancing national objectives
15

Page 16



with local considerations. This approach should also provide the designated landscape bodies

with further opportunities to draw in additional external funds and resources.

Recommendation 25

Retain the single purpose local authority model for National Park management.

Recommendation 26

Retain and develop flexible AONB management models.

Recommendation 27

Nationél Park Authorities and AONB bodies will need to consider how they restructure

themselves in order to deliver the three new purposes.

Recommendation 28

The Welsh Government should reduce the disproportionate regulatory burden on

National Park Authorities that is designed for larger and more complex local authorities.

Recommendation 29

The Welsh Government should give National Park Authorities and AONB bodies the

means of applying for and drawing down funding from a wider range of sources.

Leadership: A Radical Change in Institutional and Inter-agency Culture and Working
We want to shift the institutional culture of governance of the designated landscapes from one
of “deference” to a more accountable and innovative one that enhances existing “soft” powers

to convene.

16

Page 17



Recommendation 30

The Welsh Government should establish a ‘National Landscapes Partnership Board' as
per Figure 17 (p.138).

Recommendation 31

The 8 National Park Authorities and AONB bodies should establish a light-touch

‘National Landscapes of Wales Committee' as per Figure 18 (p.139).

Recommendation 32

The Welsh Government should work with the National Landscapes bodies and the
relevant stakeholders through the Partnership Board and the National Committee to
agree, and keep under review an over-arching ‘Strategy for the National Landscapes of
Wales'.

National Landscapes and National Government
Given the national importance of the designated landscapes to Wales we envisage a far higher
profile for them within the National Assembly for Wales. We also envisage direct Ministerial

engagement with the National Landscapes Framework.

Recommendation 33

The statutory Partnership Plans of each of the National Landscapes of Wales should be
scrutinised by the National Assembly for Wales prior to adoption.

Recommendation 34

The National Assembly for Wales, as it evolves its own internal architecture, should
consider the relationship between itself and the National Landscapes of Wales to

maximise scrutiny and accountability.
17

Page 18



Recommendation 35

The Welsh Government should set performance targets and indicators for the National
Landscapes of Wales that derive from and align with the Well-Being Goals.

Integrated Planning and Reporting

It is both timely and more efficient to integrate the planning requirements of recent legislative
developments into ONE statutory Partnership Planning exercise which embodies, at its centre,
the statutory Partnership Plan, but also embraces plans concerning well-being and natural

resource management.

Recommendation 36

There should be One statutory partnership planning exercise for each of the designated
landscapes.

Recommendation 37

The statutory Partnership Plan for an area should integrate the current management

plan, well-being plan and natural resources area statements.

Local Partnerships

Successful management of the special areas depends on productive partnerships with all
those who have an impact on them. We want them to be even more relevant economically,
socially and culturally, which will require enhanced and effective local engagement between all

relevant stakeholders.

Recommendation 38

Formally constituted '‘Partnerships' should be established in each National Park which

are closely involved in the preparation and delivery of the statutory Partnership Plan.

18

Page 19



Recommendation 39

The National Park Partnership should be chaired by the Chair of the National Park
Authority.

Recommendation 40

There should be a formally agreed relationship between the National Park Partnership
and the National Park Authority.

Recommendation 41

The AONBSs should continue to develop their trusted partnership-working models,

"however we do not feel a "one size fits all' would benefit the AONBs.

Fostering lateral relationships with Natural Resources Wales and local authorities
NRW will be a major source of professional advice on the sustainable management of natural
resources from which the designated landscapes should benefit. As larger local authorities
emerge existing links between them and their AONBs may prove too fragile, it is therefore
essential to ensure continued strong links between local authorities and AONBs. We wish to

reinforce and spread existing good practice across all eight designated landscapes.

Recommendation 42

Natural Resources Wales should build and make available to the Welsh Government an
exhaustive list of their statutory duties and powers in relation to Wales’ designated

landscapes.

19

Page 20



Recommendation 43

Natural Resources Wales will involve and champion the national landscapes on the

relevant Public Service Boards.

Recommendation 44

Natural Resources Wales and local authorities will have regard to the statutory

Partnership Plans in the conduct of their planning exercises in their area.

Recommendation 45

Natural Resources Wales will share data and provide professional advice on the

sustainable management of natural resources to the National Landscapes.

Recommendation 46

Local authorities should reinforce and spread the best practice of their joint working in
the AONBs across all eight National Parks and AONBs.

Forward Planning and Development Management

We found the case for removing planning powers from the NPAs unpersuasive, based on
dated examples that did not reflect contemporary experience and largely based upon
perception. The National Park Authorities, which manage the landscape of 20% of Wales, will
need to be more integrated in the delivery of their three purposes. While planning will remain
one tool amongst the several required to deliver the new purposes, it will serve a key function

delivering consistency across our National Parks.

Recommendation 47

The National Park Authorities should retain their strategic planning policy and planning
development control functions.
20

Page 21



Recommendation 48

The Welsh Government should reinforce and support the provision of pre-application
planning advice from the National Park Authorities.

Recommendation 49

The National Landscapes Committee should co-ordinate and help share the costs of
training and education in land use planning matters especially for delivery of the new

purposes.

Recommendation 50

The AONB bodies become a statutory consultee on planning applications with a

potentially significant impact on the special qualities of their area.

Recommendation 51

A system of independent planning advice for AONBs across Wales is developed and

resourced.

Recommendation 52

A suite of indicators on planning outcomes in the National Parks and AONBs is

developed for the National Landscapes of Wales.

Page 22

21



Local Representation and Diversity

We want to further harness the potential and passion of both the national importance and local
opportunities in National Parks and AONBs, to ensure greater diversity in decision-making,
and to build stronger bridges between the designated landscapes and their constituent local

authorities.

Recommendation 53

Each National Park Authority should comprise: 2 nominated County Councillors,
representatives of the national interest appointed by Welsh Government via open
competition, and % representatives of the local interest appointed via open competition

by the members listed above.

Recommendation 54

The recruitment and appointment processes for the 'national interest' and 'local
interest’ members of National Park Authorities should include best practice to ensure

diversity in the Authority's membership.

Recommendation 55

To develop and embed in all three National Parks the positive steps already piloted by
the National Park Authorities to increase diversity on their Authorities i.e. the Mosaic,

mentoring and Ambassador approaches.

Recommendation 56

The Welsh Government should remove the requirement for political balance of local
authority members on National Park Authorities, to increase local representation. Thus
Councillors appointed to National Park Authorities should represent wards within, or
straddling, the National Park boundary. [Section 15 of the Local Government & Housing
Act, 1989 and Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990.]

22

Page 23



Recommendation 57

There should be formal reporting arrangements between the Councillors on the
National Park Authority and their parent local authority.

Recommendation 58

The Welsh Government should place a statutory duty on local authorities to establish a
formal committee to oversee the management of the AONB and to delegate the local
authority's responsibility for preparing the AONB Management plan to this Committee
(but not delegating its responsibilities under the duty to the AONB purposes and
delivering its aspects of the Management Plan). We recommend this be renamed the

'AONB Delivery Committee’ rather than the usual name: Joint Advisory Committee.

Recommendation 59

The Welsh Government should direct each AONB Delivery Committee to include at least
one Cabinet member from each constituent local authority, at least two representatives
of the national interest appointed by the Welsh Government via open competition, and
at least two representatives of the local interest appointed via open competition by the

rest of the members.

Recommendation 60

The Welsh Government should remove the requirement for political balance of local
authority members on AONB formal committees, to increase local representation. Thus
the Councillors appointed to AONB formal committees (in addition to the Cabinet
members in Rx above) should represent wards within, or straddling, the AONB
boundary. [Section 15 of the Local Government & Housing Act, 1989 and Local
Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990.]

23

Page 24



Recommendation 61

The appointment processes for the 'national interest' and 'local interest' members of
AONB Delivery Committee should incorporate equalities best practice to ensure

diversity of Committee's membership.

Recommendation 62

The AONBs should actively learn from, and apply, the NPAs' pilot programmes to
increase diversity on their Delivery Committees. (This learning can be facilitated by the

National Landscapes of Wales Committee.)

Recommendation 63

Natural Resources Wales should continue to be a key adviser to the AONB Delivery

Committee.

Recommendation 64

There should be formal reporting arrangements between the Councillors on the AONB
Delivery Committee and their parent local authority.

Funding Arrangements

We believe that funding arrangements for the designated bodies need to be streamlined and
simplified. Effective performance requires sufficient support, including financial support, to
deliver for designated landscapes. In the current economic climate the AONBs are especially
vulnerable to having their base-line funding undermined due to the discretionary nature of their

local government and NRW funding.

24

Page 25



Recommendation 65

The Welsh Government should provide the annual core grant allocation to all National
Landscapes of Wales, thereby removing NRW and local authority levies.

Recommendation 66

The Welsh Government should top slice the core allocation for specific strategic,
collaborative and national initiatives (as currently allocated through SDF and

competitive grants such as the Nature Fund).

Recommendation 67

The Welsh Government should manage accountability of core funding through an
annual review process administered by an agreed performance criteria linked to the
Well-Being Goals and to the statutory Partnership Plans of the National Landscape
bodies.

Recommendation 68

The National Landscape bodies should have greater flexibility to leverage external
funding sources. This will require a shift in the internal management structures and
function of these bodies and, in the case of the AONBs their relationships with their
partner local authorities.

Recommendation 69

The National Landscape bodies should have greater flexibility to generate their own
revenue streams through developing a wider range of Payments for Eco-system
services, in line with delivering their purposes. Their ability to use and draw down rural

Development Plan and related EU funding will be important.

25

Page 26



The New Governance Framework for Wales’ National Landscapes

The new governance framework is an outcome of the evidence received and the careful
deliberation of the panel over the past year. We believe that in its structures and processes it
delivers a robust framework for more effectively delivering performance, leadership and
direction, voice, accountability and public efficiency of the landscape areas, and in this it
embodies a far more partnership-based approach with greater representation. It allows for the
clear delivery of the revised set of purposes and, in our opinion will deliver the Welsh

Government’s ambitious legislative programme on the ground in the National Landscapes.

26

Page 27



Agenda Item 5

Sustainable Development Fund — Budget Summary for 2015/16

Welsh Government have confirmed a budget of £ 60,000 for Gower AONB

SDF for 2015/16.

The Committed Funds figure includes the CCS Management Fee of £6,000
(10%).

Total Funds available £ 60,000.00

Committed Funds £ 40,973.48

Pending Applications £ 18,840.00

Under Commitment £19,026.52

There is currently £186.52 uncommitted within the SDF budget, but we
anticipate reaching full commitment by the end of February 2016.

Welsh Government have indicated that there will be a slight reduction in SDF
funding for 2016/17.

Mike Scott,
11th October 2015

Page 28



	Agenda
	2 Minutes.
	4 Designated Landscapes Review.
	5 Sustainable Development Fund.

